
Parkside  Station Approach  Burton Street  Melton Mowbray  Leicestershire  LE13 1GH
01664 502502 * contactus@melton.gov.uk * www.melton.gov.uk * @MeltonBC

Agenda Rural Capital of Food

Meeting name Audit and Standards Committee
Date Tuesday, 11 June 2019
Start time 6.30 pm
Venue Parkside, Station Approach, Burton Street, 

Melton Mowbray, Leicestershire  LE13 1GH
Other information This meeting is open to the public

Members of the Audit and Standards Committee are requested to attend the 
above meeting to consider the following items of business.

Edd de Coverly
Chief Executive

Membership

Councillors J. Douglas (Chair) J. Wilkinson (Vice-Chair)
R. Bindloss R. Browne
R. Child R. de Burle
A. Hewson S. Lumley
D. Pritchett R. Smedley

Quorum:  14 Councillors

Meeting enquiries Helen Ainge
Email democracy@melton.gov.uk
Agenda despatched Monday, 3 June 2019

Public Document Pack



Page 2 of 2

No. Item Page No.

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2.  MINUTES
There are no minutes to confirm, as this is the first meeting of this 
Committee.

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members to declare any interest as appropriate, in respect of items 
to be considered at this meeting.

4.  INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
The Head of Internal Audit to submit a report to satisfy the Accounts 
and Audit Regulations by providing Members with the opportunity to 
consider a report from the Head of the Council’s Internal Audit 
function on the performance of Internal Audit during the year and the 
‘Internal Audit Opinion’ on the Council’s system of internal control 
and its arrangements for risk management and governance.

1 - 38

5.  INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER AND STRATEGY
The Head of Internal Audit to submit a report providing Members 
with a copy of the Internal Audit Charter and Strategy for review and 
approval.

39 - 54

6.  CODE OF CONDUCT UPDATE
The Monitoring Officer to submit a report to update the Committee 
on the latest position with regard to standards matters including the 
Code of Conduct, the Registration of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
and Other Interests and any complaints against Councillors dealt 
with under the Council’s process.

55 - 58

7.  URGENT BUSINESS
To consider any other items that the Chair considers urgent.



INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

1.0 Summary:
1.1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the Standards) require the Head of 

Internal Audit to provide an annual Internal Audit report and opinion on the overall 
adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s governance, risk and control 
framework (i.e. the control environment) that can be used by the organisation to 
inform its Annual Governance Statement.  This report provides a copy of the 
Annual Report which contains the annual opinion and the basis for this, for the 
Committee’s attention.

2.0 Recommendations
2.1 That Members receive and note the Internal Audit Annual Report and 

Assurance Opinion for 2018/19.

3.0 Report Detail

Internal Audit opinion 

3.1 Based upon the work undertaken by Internal Audit during 2018/19, the Head of 
Internal Audit’s overall opinion on the Council’s control environment is that 
Satisfactory Assurance can be given that there is generally a sound system of 
internal control, designed to meet the organisation’s objectives and that controls are 
generally operating effectively in practice.  However, no systems of control can 
provide absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss, nor can Internal 
Audit give that assurance.  

3.2 Appendix A to this report provides a copy of the Annual Report which includes the 
detailed Head of Internal Audit opinion on the Council’s control framework for 
2018/19 and the basis for this opinion.

Internal Audit performance

3.3 The report includes details of the delivery of the Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19 and 
achievement of the service’s performance indicators.  The team has delivered 
100% of the agreed assignments from the Internal Audit Plan for the year and 
performed well against performance indicators.

Audit & Standards 
Committee 
11th June 2019
Report of: Head of Internal Audit

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



3.4 An assessment of the Internal Audit service against the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards has concluded that the Internal Audit service operates in general 
conformance with the Standards.  

4.0 Consultation and Feedback (including Scrutiny Committee)
4.1 Not applicable.

5.0 Next Steps
5.1 If approved, the Internal Audit plan for 2019/20 will be delivered in accordance with 

the Charter and Strategy.

6.0 Financial Implications
6.1 There are no financial or other resource implications arising directly from this report.

7.0 Legal and Governance Implications:
7.1 There are no legal implications arising directly from this report.

8.0 Equality and Safeguarding Implications:
8.1 There are no equalities or safeguarding implications arising directly from this report.

9.0 Community Safety Implications:
9.1 There are no community safety implications arising directly from this report.

10.0 Other Implications
10.1 There are no other implications arising directly from this report.

11.0 Risk & Mitigation:
11.1 The annual Internal Audit report forms part of the evidence that supports the 

Council’s Annual Governance Statement and provides assurance over the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal controls to manage the key 
risks and inform risk management arrangements.

Background Papers:
Not applicable.

Appendices
Appendix 1:  Annual Internal Audit Report 2018/19

Report Timeline:

Equalities Check & Challenge 
SLT Sign off
Previously Considered by Cabinet 
Director Approval
Chief Finance Officer Sign Off

Page 2



Monitoring Officer Sign Off

Exempt Reports

Date of Review to make public (Exempt Reports only)

Report Author & Job Title
Rachel Ashley-Caunt, LGSS Head of Internal Audit & Counter Fraud

: 07824 537900  

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A

MELTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT
2018/19

Page 5



Page 2

1.    Background

1.1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) require the Head of Internal Audit to 
provide an annual Internal Audit opinion and supporting report that can be used by the 
organisation to inform its governance statement. 

1.2 The Standards specify that the annual report must contain:
 an Internal Audit opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s 

governance, risk and control framework (i.e. the control environment);
 a summary of the audit work from which the opinion is derived  and any work by other 

assurance providers upon which reliance is placed; and
 a statement on the extent of conformance with the Standards including progress against 

the improvement plan resulting from any external assessments.

2.    Head of Internal Audit Opinion 2018/19

2.1 This report provides a summary of the work carried out by the Internal Audit service at Melton 
Borough Council during the financial year 2018/19 and the results of these assignments.  
Based upon the work undertaken during the year, the Head of Internal Audit’s overall opinion 
on the Council’s system of internal control is that:

It is my opinion that Satisfactory Assurance can be given over the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the Council’s control environment for 2018/19.  This control environment 
comprises of the system of internal control, governance arrangements and risk 
management.  This remains consistent with the opinions given in recent years.

Controls relating to the key financial systems which were reviewed during the year were 
concluded to be generally operating effectively, with an opinion of Good Assurance given 
over the adequacy and compliance with the key controls tested.

For the audits completed in 2018/19, 80% of the opinions given in relation to the control 
environment and compliance have been of at least Satisfactory Assurance.   The proportion 
of audits resulting in opinions of Limited Assurance has been higher than in 2017/18 but it is 
noted that action plans have been agreed to address all areas of weakness.  Of the 
recommended actions agreed, and due for implementation, 67% had been completed in a 
timely manner during the year.

Internal Audit has not been made aware of any further governance, risk or internal control 
issues which would reduce the above opinion. No systems of controls can provide absolute 
assurance against material misstatement or loss, nor can Internal Audit give that assurance.

2.2 The basis for this opinion is derived from an assessment of the range of individual opinions 
arising from assignments within the risk-based Internal Audit plan that have been undertaken 
throughout the year.  This assessment has taken account of the relative materiality of these 

Page 6



Page 3

areas and management’s progress in respect of addressing any control weaknesses and has 
acknowledged any gaps in assurances.  A summary of Audit opinions is shown in Table 1.

Table 1 – Summary of audit opinions 2018/19:

Area Substantial Good Satisfactory Limited No

Financial systems - 2 - - -

Governance & Counter 
Fraud

3 4 - 3 -

Corporate & Cross Cutting - 4 4 2 -

Delivery of Corporate 
Objectives

- 1 6 1 -

Total 3 11 10 6 0

Summary 10% 37% 33% 20% 0%

2017/18 outcomes – for 
comparison

11% 43% 39% 7% 0%

3.    Review of audit coverage

Audit opinion on individual audits

3.1 The Committee is reminded that the following assurance opinions have been assigned during 
2018/19:

Table 2 – Assurance categories:

Level of 
Assurance

Definition

Substantial There are minimal control weaknesses that present very low risk to the control 
environment. The control environment has substantially operated as intended 
with either no, or only minor, errors detected.

Good There are minor control weaknesses that present low risk to the control 
environment. The control environment has largely operated as intended 
although some errors have been detected.

Satisfactory There are some control weaknesses that present a medium risk to the control 
environment. The control environment has mainly operated as intended 
although errors have been detected.

Limited There are significant control weaknesses that present a high risk to the control 
environment. The control environment has not operated as intended. 

Page 7



Page 4

Level of 
Assurance

Definition

Significant errors have been detected.

No There are fundamental control weaknesses that present an unacceptable level 
of risk to the control environment. The control environment has fundamentally 
broken down and is open to significant error or abuse.

3.2 Audit reports issued in 2018/19, other than those relating to consultancy support, resulted in 
the provision of one of the above audit opinions.  All individual reports represented in this 
Annual Report are final reports and, as such, the findings have been agreed with 
management, together with the accompanying action plans.

Summary of audit work

3.3 Table 3 details the assurance levels resulting from all audits undertaken in 2018/19 and the 
date of the Committee meeting at which a summary of the report was presented.

Table 3 – Summary of audit opinions 2018/19:

Audit Area Design of 
Control 

Environment

Compliance Organisational 
Impact

Committee Date

Financial 

Financial System Key 
Controls

Good 
assurance

Good 
assurance

Minor June 2019

Governance & Counter Fraud

Right to Buy – fraud 
risks

Limited 
assurance

Limited 
assurance

Moderate June 2019

General Data 
Protection 
Regulation (GDPR)

Good 
assurance

Good 
assurance

Minor January 2019

Procurement 
compliance

Good 
assurance

Limited 
assurance

Moderate June 2019

Risk Management Substantial 
assurance

Good 
assurance

Minor June 2019

Council Tax support – 
fraud risks

Substantial 
assurance

Substantial 
assurance

Minor June 2019

Page 8



Page 5

Audit Area Design of 
Control 

Environment

Compliance Organisational 
Impact

Committee Date

Corporate & Cross Cutting

Freedom of 
Information (FOI) 
and Environmental 
Information Requests 
(EIR)

Good 
assurance

Satisfactory 
assurance

Minor June 2019

IR35 Limited 
assurance

Limited 
assurance

Moderate September 2018

Travel expense 
claims

Satisfactory 
assurance 

Satisfactory 
assurance

Moderate November 2018

Business continuity 
management and 
emergency planning

Good 
assurance

Satisfactory 
assurance

Minor January 2019

Absence 
Management

Good 
assurance

Good 
assurance

Minor November 2018

Delivery of Corporate Objectives 

Beckmill Court 
regeneration project

Satisfactory 
assurance

Limited 
assurance

Moderate September 2018

Housing repairs 
contract

Good 
assurance

Satisfactory 
assurance

Moderate March 2019

Environmental 
Health

Satisfactory 
assurance

Satisfactory 
assurance

Minor March 2019

Safeguarding Satisfactory 
assurance

Satisfactory 
assurance

Moderate June 2019

3.4 Outlined in Appendix 1 is a summary of each of the audits finalised during the year.  The 
Committee should note that the majority of these findings have previously been reported as 
part of the defined cycle of progress update reports provided to the Audit Committee.   

Page 9



Page 6

Implementation of Internal Audit recommendations

3.5 Internal Audit follow up on progress made against all recommendations arising from 
completed assignments to ensure that they have been fully and promptly implemented.  
Internal Audit trace follow up action on a monthly basis and has provided a summary to the 
Governance Committee at each meeting.  

3.6 It is noted that only 25 audit recommendations were made during 2018/19 in comparison 
with a total of 60 recommendations made during 2017/18.  Again, reflecting an improvement 
in the control environments compared with those reviewed in the previous year.  

3.7 Details of the implementation rate for audit recommendations made during 2018/19 are 
provided in Table 4.

Table 4 - Implementation of audit recommendations from 2018/19 reports:

Category ‘High’ 
recommendations

Category ‘Medium’ 
recommendations

Category ‘Low’ 
recommendations

Total

Agreed and 
implemented

- 19 5 24 
(37%)

Agreed and not 
yet due for 
implementation

4 10 15 29

(45%)

Agreed and due 
within last 3 
months, but not 
implemented

- 3 1 4

  (6%)

Agreed and due 
over 3 months 
ago, but not 
implemented

3 5 - 8 

 (12%)

TOTAL 7 37 21 65 
(100%)

Page 10



Page 7

3.8   A summary of ‘high’ and ‘medium’ overdue recommendations is shown in Table 5.  This 
includes four further recommendations which remain overdue from 2017/18:

Table 5 - Summary of ‘High’ and ‘Medium’ priority overdue recommendations as at 31st March 
2019

High Medium

Audit Title Audit Year Over 3 
months 
overdue

Under 3 
months 
overdue

Over 3 
months 
overdue

Under 3 
months 
overdue

Travel expenses 2018/19 1 - - 1
Beckmill Court 2018/19 2 - 3 -
Me and My Learning 2018/19 - - 1 -
Cyber Security 2018/19 - - 1 -
IR35 2018/19 - - - 1
GDPR 2018/19 - - - 1
Benefits 2017/18 1 - - -
Fixed Assets 2017/18 - - 2 -
Staff Training & 
Development

2017/18 - - 1 -

Totals 4 - 8 3

 3.9 The level of implementation was reported to the Governance Committee throughout the year 
and monitoring of outstanding recommendations remains ongoing.

Other sources of assurance

3.10 In forming an opinion on the control environment for 2018/19, other sources of assurance 
have been considered, where appropriate.  At the time of reporting, the Council does not have 
valid Public Sector Network compliance certification and, as such, no assurances can be taken 
from this.  The ICT service is working on a remedial plan and are planning resubmission in June 
2019.  Internal Audit are seeking updates on this process to provide assurance over the ICT 
controls and ongoing access to the public sector network.

4. Internal Audit performance 

Internal Audit contribution

4.1 It is important that Internal Audit demonstrates its value to the organisation. The service 
provides assurance to management and members via its programme of work and also offers 
support, advice and insight to assist the Council in new areas of work or to pro-actively review 
and improve the control framework.

Delivery of 2018/19 Audit Plan

4.2 The team has delivered 100% of the agreed audit assignments within the Audit Plan for 
2018/19.  

Page 11



Page 8

Internal Audit contribution in wider areas

4.3 Key additional areas of Internal Audit contribution to the Council in 2018/19 are set out in 
Table 7:

Table 7 – Internal Audit contribution

Area of Activity Benefit to the Council

Maintaining good working relationships with 
External Audit to ensure most effective 
coverage and avoiding duplication if possible.

Reduce audit burden, saving costs.

Assisting in the drafting of a new Code of 
Corporate Governance.

To ensure the Council’s governance 
arrangements are robust and consistent 
with best practice.

Delivering a session with middle and senior 
managers on the audit planning process.

Embedding awareness of the audit process 
and ensuring that risks are suitably 
captured and prioritised in audit planning.

Facilitating a fraud awareness week campaign 
in November 2018.

Raising the awareness of staff in relation 
to fraud risks and embedding a zero 
tolerance culture to fraud and corruption.

Sharing of best practice and solutions 
adopted at other authorities.

Benefit from insight into tried and tested 
solution and good practice examples to 
strengthen controls and efficiencies.

Presence at Melton Borough Council offices. Assistance with ad-hoc queries, building 
working relationships and raising the 
profile of Internal Audit.

Acting as a point of contact for 
whistleblowing referrals.

Providing an independent point of contact 
for reporting concerns and providing a 
professional investigation service at short 
notice when required, to ensure concerns 
are dealt with in accordance with best 
practice and suitably logged.

Supporting and advising upon fact-finding 
investigations, as required.

Sharing of knowledge of good practice and 
independent insight and challenge.

         

Page 12



Page 9

Performance Indicators 

4.4 Internal Audit maintains several key performance indicators (KPIs) to enable ongoing 
monitoring by senior management and the Audit Committee.  Outturns against these 
indicators in relation to work delivered for Melton Borough Council are provided in Table 8:

Table 8 – Internal Audit KPI’s 2018/19

Indicator description Target Actual

Delivery of the agreed annual Internal 
Audit Plan 

100% 100%

Delivery of the agreed annual Internal 
Audit Plan by end of March 2019

90% 89%

Customer Feedback – rating on a scale of 
1 to 4 (average) – where:  4 = 
Outstanding, 3 = Good, 2 = Satisfactory 
and 1 = Poor).

3.1 3.2

5. Professional Standards

5.1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) were adopted by the Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) from April 2013 and were further updated in March 
2017.  The standards are intended to promote further improvement in the professionalism, 
quality, consistency and effectiveness of Internal Audit across the public sector.

5.2 The objectives of the PSIAS are to:

 Define the nature of internal auditing within the UK public sector;
 Set basic principles for carrying out internal audit in the UK public sector;
 Establish a framework for providing internal audit services, which add value to the 

organisation, leading to improved organisational processes and operations; and
 Establish the basis for the evaluation of internal audit performance and to drive 

improvement planning.

5.3 A detailed self-assessment against the latest PSIAS has been completed by the Head of 
Internal Audit, a copy of which can be provided as required.  The outcome of the assessment 
was that the Internal Audit service is operating in general conformance with the Standards.

Page 13



Page 10

Appendix 1: Summary of Internal Audit Work Undertaken for 2018/19

Audit 
Assignment

Assurance Rating

Design             Compliance     Org Impact

Area Reviewed Basis for Assurance Opinion

Financial 
systems key 
controls

Substantial 
assurance

Substantial 
assurance

Minor To provide assurance that sufficiently 
robust controls are in place, and 
operating consistently.  The audit 
focussed on key controls relating to 
system access, setting up of new 
suppliers and processing changes to the 
supplier standing data, use of credit 
notes, and payroll payments processing.

The Council makes use of the Oracle system for finance 
functions and the Northgate system for Revenues and 
Benefits. A review of user access to these systems 
identified that all leavers had their access removed, and 
the level of access for the current users was found to be 
appropriate to their roles.

The audit review identified scope to improve record 
keeping in regards to changes to supplier data and 
potential for additional controls for new supplier 
processing. Also testing of credit notes indicated 
potential room for improvement to strengthen controls 
around authorisation of the credit notes to ensure 
credit notes are only issued to correct a factual 
inaccuracy or administrative error in the billing of the 
original debt and are independently approved.

Audit testing confirmed that payroll processes and 
controls have been designed well and were operating 
effectively, with only minor immaterial errors identified 
by Internal Audit.   

Governance & Counter Fraud
Right to Buy – 
fraud risks

Limited 
assurance

Limited 
assurance

Moderate To provide assurance over the Council’s 
controls for handling of right to buy 
applications, to ensure fraud and money 

There had been no prior audit work on right to buys at 
the Council and it is recognised that following staffing 
changes in recent years it had been highlighted by 
current officers that processes require review.  As such, 

P
age 14



Page 11

Audit 
Assignment

Assurance Rating

Design             Compliance     Org Impact

Area Reviewed Basis for Assurance Opinion

laundering risks are being suitably 
managed.

the audit sought to support Council officers with this 
process and advise on areas for development during 
this work.  

The right to buy process is currently being conducted 
based on a checklist, recently developed by the service 
area, to ensure that checks are undertaken in relation 
to every application.  There are, however, no 
procedures detailing the checks that must be 
undertaken and how these should be evidenced.  The 
checklist lacks details of some key controls which 
should be consistently applied to ensure eligibility, 
fraud and money laundering risks are robustly 
addressed.  

Due to a lack of detailed procedures in place and an 
acknowledged lack of evidence trail to demonstrate the 
completion of key checks, it was agreed that the audit 
assignment would focus upon pro-actively 
strengthening procedures and sharing best practice.  As 
such, no sample testing was undertaken, based on the 
understanding that fraud related controls and evidence 
were found to be lacking and there was no value in 
further testing. 

The existing checklist included some key controls such 
as identity checks but no record was held of the checks 
undertaken and there was no procedural guidance 
specifying the forms of identification that are 

P
age 15



Page 12

Audit 
Assignment

Assurance Rating

Design             Compliance     Org Impact

Area Reviewed Basis for Assurance Opinion

acceptable.

The risk of money laundering has been acknowledged 
by the Council and a letter should be sent to the acting 
solicitor to confirm the relevant money laundering 
checks had been completed by the acting solicitor.  
There is scope, however, for further assurances to be 
sought by the Council in the earlier stages of the 
application.

April 2019 - The LGSS Counter Fraud service has worked 
with the service area to review existing arrangements, 
highlight key risks and support the development of a 
robust control framework for the timely and robust 
handling of future applications.

General Data 
Protection 
Regulation 
(GDPR)

Satisfactory 
assurance

Good 
assurance

Minor To provide assurance over the Council’s 
compliance with the new data 
management regulations which come 
into force in May 2018.

The Council has identified what personal data it holds and 
determined how it is processed; such information is held 
within the Council’s information asset register and Record 
of Processing Activity (ROPA).  Policies in relation to GDPR 
were found to be available to all staff, and whilst these 
had been approved by the Senior Leadership Team (SLT), it 
was noted that the policies had not yet been formally 
approved at committee level. 

The Council refers to the latest retention and disposal 
guidance provided by the Local Government Association 
(LGA).  Whilst the Council can demonstrate that good 
progress has been made in relation to records 

P
age 16



Page 13

Audit 
Assignment

Assurance Rating

Design             Compliance     Org Impact

Area Reviewed Basis for Assurance Opinion

management, further work is required to provide 
assurance that all personal data is being held, and 
disposed of in accordance with agreed policy and 
procedures; and the requirements of the GDPR.

Privacy notices include matters in relation to the Council’s 
lawful basis for processing personal data and a review of 
existing consents and consent mechanisms has been 
undertaken.  Some areas for improvement have been 
identified with regards to processing special category data 
and the means used to obtain consent. 

Robust systems and procedures exist to detect; report; 
and investigate a personal data breach and whilst the 
policy and procedures in relation to subject access 
requests require updating.  Sample testing of cases since 
May 2018 identified 100% compliance with key controls in 
both handling of data breaches and the processing of 
subject access requests. 

The Council has appointed a suitably experienced and 
qualified Data Protection Officer (DPO), and it is 
understood that monitoring arrangements are currently 
under review.  A review identified that only 33% of staff 
have completed online training, whilst only 25% of 
Members have attended in-house training.  It is noted that 
the Council and all Members are registered with the 

P
age 17



Page 14

Audit 
Assignment

Assurance Rating

Design             Compliance     Org Impact

Area Reviewed Basis for Assurance Opinion

Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO).

Procurement 
compliance

Good 
assurance

Limited 
assurance 

Moderate The Council’s Contract Procedure Rules 
(CPRs) are designed to ensure probity and 
value for money when procuring goods, 
works or services that meet the needs of 
local residents and comply with legal and 
regulatory requirements in respect of 
competition and transparency. This audit 
was carried out to provide assurance that 
officers are complying with the approved 
rules and practices.

The Council revised its CPRs in October 2018 and the 
latest version of the CPRs was found to be published on 
the Council’s website at the time of the audit review.

A sample of procurements completed in the current 
financial year was reviewed to ensure compliance with 
the relevant CPR requirements.  Sample testing 
identified weaknesses in the recording and evidencing 
of compliance with several aspects of the Council’s 
approved procedures. Insufficient evidence to 
demonstrate compliance was received in two instances 
and failure to have contractual provisions in place was 
noted in one other case. Failure to clearly document 
compliance means there is an increased exposure to 
the risks of legal challenge, allegations of fraud and 
poor value for money. In one case, there was no 
evidence to demonstrate the evaluation criteria had 
been pre-determined and the request for quotation 
documentation did not specify the relative weighting 
for evaluation of the bids. It was also noted that in one 
case no formal contract was in place. Action is required 
to strengthen existing arrangements for recording 
procurement processes ensuring evidence held by 
relevant officers is readily available. 

Furthermore, the Council’s contracts register had not 

P
age 18



Page 15

Audit 
Assignment

Assurance Rating

Design             Compliance     Org Impact

Area Reviewed Basis for Assurance Opinion

been updated throughout 2018/19 due to a change in 
the provision of legal services from a shared service to 
in house and the vacancies arising as a result. There is 
also a lack of compliance in service areas with providing 
the necessary information for legal to update the 
register. CPRs state that the Senior Leadership Team 
(SLT) has responsibility for making sure the contracts 
register is updated following each procurement activity 
and, as such, the SLT should ensure that going forward 
the contracts register is kept up to date.

Risk 
Management

Substantial 
assurance

Good 
assurance

Minor Melton Borough Council (MBC) operates a risk 
management framework that was implemented and 
agreed as part of a Risk Management Policy and 
Strategy produced in February 2018. The policy sets out 
clear guidelines on identifying, assessing, managing and 
reviewing risks, and roles and responsibilities for risk 
management at the Council have been clearly defined. 
The Risk Management Policy and Strategy is 
accompanied by the Risk Management Toolkit which 
acts as an aide in risk management processes and 
provides guidance on risk identification and scoring. 
Both can be accessed by all staff on the shared network, 
MIKE.

The Council’s strategic risk register is used to record and 
manage eleven corporate risks, each risk has a risk 
description, risk vulnerability and cause and the risk 

P
age 19



Page 16

Audit 
Assignment

Assurance Rating

Design             Compliance     Org Impact

Area Reviewed Basis for Assurance Opinion

consequences are noted. All risks had been scored in 
accordance with policy and current controls had been 
identified.

Operational risks are captured in the four service area 
risk registers. There are risk owners in place for each 
risk within each service risk register and each risk has its 
description, current and further mitigating actions, 
current risk and target risk sores. However, absence of 
risk review dates were noted in some operational risk 
registers. Risk register owners need to ensure that each 
risk has a set review target date to ensure effective, 
ongoing monitoring of risks.

All Council papers should also include reference to risk 
to ensure that Members and officers understand the 
impact of decision-making and the Council's project 
management framework requires risks to be identified 
and managed.  Based on sample testing, committee 
reports and project documentation provided evidence 
of this in practice.

To assist service managers and Members in 
understanding risk management terminology and 
fulfilling their roles within the risk management process 
a workshop for service managers and Members was 
delivered. It is also noted that further training to 

P
age 20



Page 17

Audit 
Assignment

Assurance Rating

Design             Compliance     Org Impact

Area Reviewed Basis for Assurance Opinion

Members is also planned for 2019.

Council Tax 
support – 
fraud risks

Substantial 
assurance

Substantial 
assurance

Minor To provide assurance that the Council has 
robust controls in place to prevent, 
detect and handle attempted fraud 
through the Council Tax Support scheme.

Based on Internal Audit testing, the Council has sound 
arrangements in place to prevent fraud, primarily 
through the application of robust verification of new 
claims and changes of circumstances. Effective use and 
prompt processing of data provided by DWP further 
reduces the risk of fraud. Internal fraud is mitigated 
through annual staff declarations of interest and 
account restrictions, although the 2018 process has 
been delayed due to redesign of the forms.

Proactive fraud detection relies on national data 
matching exercises which are followed up and actioned 
in a timely manner in most cases; review of council tax 
support and other lower priority matches is scheduled 
for late April 2019. Responsibility for fraud investigation 
rests primarily with the DWP Single Fraud Investigation 
Service (SFIS), although cases requiring a referral are 
relatively rare.

Corporate and cross cutting
FOI and EIR Good 

assurance
Satisfactory 
assurance

Minor To provide assurance over the Council’s 
procedures for handling formal 
information requests and to assess 
compliance with these in practice, based 
on sample testing.  

The Council has developed the Information Governance 
and Risk policy which covers the process of responding 
and dealing with information requests including FOI and 
EIR. It is understood that a wider review of the policies 
and procedures relating to information requests as well 
as guidance available to members of staff is yet to be 
undertaken.  General training is planned for all staff, 

P
age 21



Page 18

Audit 
Assignment

Assurance Rating

Design             Compliance     Org Impact

Area Reviewed Basis for Assurance Opinion

and more specific and technical training involving drop 
in sessions will be delivered to each service area’s 
representatives who are responsible for collating 
evidence for requests.

It was noted that the Council does not currently publish 
disclosure log listing responses to requests made under 
the Freedom of Information Act 2000 and the 
Environmental Information Regulations 2004 which can 
be of wider public interest. It is understood that officers 
plan to publish a disclosure log on a quarterly basis 
going forward.

Audit review focused on the sample of requests 
received since the implementation of new procedures 
and the appointment of a full time Information Officer 
in January 2019 primarily assigned to coordinate and 
oversee the requests for information process. Audit 
sample testing demonstrated that all but one request 
received an acknowledgement of receipt within three 
working days as per policy. In all cases the response to 
the request was provided within the statutory limit of 
20 days. In cases where disclosure was not appropriate, 
the requester was provided with a timely response 
explaining the reasons for non-disclosure and their right 

P
age 22



Page 19

Audit 
Assignment

Assurance Rating

Design             Compliance     Org Impact

Area Reviewed Basis for Assurance Opinion

to request the internal review of the decision. 

Whilst the audit review confirmed that the designed 
governance arrangements were sufficient, 
opportunities to further enhance the control framework 
were also identified. It was noted that evidencing the 
review of responses by the relevant Service Director 
and Legal prior to release could be strengthened to 
improve the audit trail.  Also the internal review process 
requires improvements to ensure the requests are dealt 
with fully and accurately, in line with legal and policy 
requirements and within timescales.

IR35 Limited 
assurance

Limited 
assurance

Moderate To provide assurance over the Council’s 
consistent compliance with IR35 
legislation in relation to agency staff.

Robust systems and controls for ensuring compliance 
with relevant tax and employment legislation are 
essential elements of the Council’s overall financial 
management arrangements. IR35 is intended to stop 
‘disguised employment’ whereby  staff are appointed 
‘off payroll’ through companies or similar trading 
arrangements that avoid the need to make tax and 
other deductions at source or to pay employer’s 
national insurance contributions. The employee is also 
potentially able to benefit from a reduced tax bill. IR35 
has been in place since 2000 but from April 2017 the 
responsibility for determining whether the rules apply 
in public sector organisations shifted from the 
contractor to the hiring organisation. Penalties for non-
compliance include repaying HMRC the tax and national 

P
age 23



Page 20

Audit 
Assignment

Assurance Rating

Design             Compliance     Org Impact

Area Reviewed Basis for Assurance Opinion

insurance due and a fine ranging between 30% and 
100% of the value of the tax due.

The Council’s arrangements for the identification and 
assessment of cases within the scope of IR35 are 
currently inadequate and expose the Council to 
unnecessary risk of financial penalties. Reliance is 
largely placed on individual managers being aware of 
their responsibility to undertake the relevant pre-
appointment checks. Monitoring and recording of cases 
potentially within the scope of IR35 is undertaken by 
the HR team using the ICT new starter form. However, 
testing identified some cases that had not been 
identified through this process and records indicate that 
65% of cases that had been identified in this way had no 
evidence of an IR35 assessment being undertaken. 

There was no formal policy, procedures or guidance on 
the Council’s approach to off-payroll workers. Where 
appointments were made through a staffing agency 
managers had been advised to seek written 
confirmation from the agency that tax and national 
insurance are being appropriately deducted. For other 
cases managers were advised to use the HMRC online 
status checker tool. However, accurate completion of 
the tool is open to interpretation and can be easily 
manipulated to achieve the desired outcome. Testing 
identified one case with inconsistencies in the tool and 
two further cases that had been completed by the 
worker rather than the manager. The consequences of 
an incorrect assessment could be significant in terms of 

P
age 24



Page 21

Audit 
Assignment

Assurance Rating

Design             Compliance     Org Impact

Area Reviewed Basis for Assurance Opinion

potential financial liability. 

At the time of audit there was no formal guidance for 
managers on the respective employment rights and 
obligations of different classes of off-payroll workers. 
Officers stated that a cautious approach was generally 
adopted and that any issues were being dealt with on a 
case-by-case basis, although this had led to some 
inconsistencies in treatment. 

April 2019 – A policy/guidance has not yet been 
formalised but the majority of supporting 
recommended actions have been progressed or 
completed.  Internal audit follow up work is ongoing.

Travel expense 
claims

Satisfactory 
assurance 

Satisfactory 
assurance

Moderate To provide assurance over compliance 
with the Council’s travel expense claim 
policy.

The Reimbursement of Expenditure Policy sets out the 
Council’s rules on how employees can claim for travel 
expenses incurred in the performance of their duties for 
the Council and is available for all staff on the shared 
network ‘MIKE’. However, the policy lacks clarity 
around out of hours travel claims and tax implications. 

To claim for expenditure incurred driving on Council 
business, employees are required to set out the 
distance of the journey undertaken on the expenses 
claim form. Audit review focused on travel claims 
submitted since April 2018 as a reminder regarding 
travel expenses had been issued to all staff in April 2018 
reminding staff of the recently reviewed 

P
age 25



Page 22

Audit 
Assignment

Assurance Rating

Design             Compliance     Org Impact

Area Reviewed Basis for Assurance Opinion

Reimbursement of Expenditure Policy. Review of a 
sample of travel claims demonstrated that consistent 
documentation for recording travel claims had been 
used. However, the testing of travel claims revealed 
cases where home to work mileage had not been 
deducted when required.  These errors were not picked 
up by the line managers when reviewing the travel 
claims. Furthermore, one case was noted where a travel 
claim was approved by the manager who did not have 
the authorisation to sign off travel claims. Managers 
and administrators should pay extra attention when 
reviewing individual travel claims to identify any 
inconsistencies and spot any potential non-compliance.

Staff can also request rail travel using a Rail Travel form 
should which is available for all staff on shared network 
‘MIKE’.  

Review of a sample of ten rail travel claims 
demonstrated that the rail travel claim form was 
consistently used for booking rail journeys. The 
evidence of manager review and authorisation was 
evident and supporting evidence such as rail tickets 
were retained and available for review.

The rates used to pay for employee mileage  at MBC are 
superior to the HMRC approved mileage rates 
(AMRs) hence the amount paid in excess of the AMR is 
subject to tax. It was confirmed that the tax on these 

P
age 26



Page 23

Audit 
Assignment

Assurance Rating

Design             Compliance     Org Impact

Area Reviewed Basis for Assurance Opinion

additional rates, as employee benefits, is paid through 
payroll. 

Review of the essential car user scheme confirmed 
there was no set criteria established to determine who 
can be classed as an essential car user. Further analysis 
on essential car users revealed a potential additional 
cost of £50k over the last twelve months where users 
were paid the essential car user rate plus the lump sum 
instead of the standard casual rates. It was the auditor’s 
opinion that a set criteria for essential car user scheme 
should be defined and essential car users must be 
regularly reassessed against the set criteria. 

Business 
continuity 
management 
and 
emergency 
planning

Good 
assurance

Satisfactory 
assurance

Minor To provide assurance over the robustness 
and completeness of the Council’s 
business continuity plans and the 
arrangements in place to fulfil the 
Council’s duties as a Category 1 
responder in the case of a major incident 
in the local area.

Effective business continuity and emergency planning is 
an essential component of the Council’s overall 
governance arrangements to ensure the resilience of all 
key services in the event of a major incident. The 
Council also has a legal responsibility under the Civil 
Contingencies Act 2004 for maintaining plans to help 
prevent, control and manage emergencies.  

Based on Internal Audit’s review the Council has an 
effective and clearly documented Major Incident Plan in 
place which is regularly reviewed and tested through 
the local resilience forum.  Clear arrangements are in 
place to make the public aware of civil protection 
matters and arrangements for regular risk assessments 
are in place to support the established community risk 
register.  Test exercises are completed bi-annually and 

P
age 27



Page 24

Audit 
Assignment

Assurance Rating

Design             Compliance     Org Impact

Area Reviewed Basis for Assurance Opinion

used to refine and update the plans and lessons learned 
are formally recorded.

The Council undertakes annual Business Impact Analysis 
exercises to inform the production and development of 
the Business Continuity Plan. The content of the 
business continuity plan is detailed and clear but could 
be made more user friendly if a simpler format was 
used and key contact lists were updated. In addition, 
there is opportunity to further strengthen the plan by 
undertaking some comparison against the corporate 
risk register and ensuring mitigations are more detailed 
and specific, with nominated officers and target 
completion dates.

Internal Audit review of a sample of mitigating controls 
confirmed that all were operating effectively. However, 
there were no formal arrangements for periodic testing 
of the business continuity plan. This increases the risk 
that plans may not operate effectively in the event of a 
real incident.

Absence 
Management

Good 
assurance

Good 
assurance 

Minor To provide assurance over the effective 
management of employee absence and 
leave.

The current Managing Attendance Policy and Procedure 
is available for all staff on the shared network 'MIKE'.  
The policy was under review at the time of audit and 
the revised policy provided a much clearer, more robust 
process for managing staff sickness absence and 
templates for formally recording meetings held.  The 
policy should assist managers in supporting employees 
in their return to work and ensuring all key steps are 

P
age 28



Page 25

Audit 
Assignment

Assurance Rating

Design             Compliance     Org Impact

Area Reviewed Basis for Assurance Opinion

taken in a timely manner. 

HR maintains information on recorded sickness 
absences on an absence management system. 
Monthly sickness absence reports are received form 
service areas and reconciled to absence records and 
supporting evidence.  A sample of monthly absence 
returns was reviewed and all except one absence was 
found to be recorded accurately on the system. The one 
case had already been identified by the HR and is being 
addressed. 

The Managing Attendance policy included definitions of 
sickness absence and contains guidance on 
management action in regards to short and long-term 
sickness cases. A sample of employee absences was 
reviewed and in all cases, including short and long term 
absences, actions had been taken to address and 
monitor absence in line with the existing policy 
requirements. Since procedures for addressing sickness 
absence will be changing under the new policy, line 
managers should receive training to ensure sickness 
absence is handled in line with the new requirements. 
Return to work procedures were also reviewed and in 
testing of a sample of absence cases, in all except one 
case evidence of the return to work interview was held 
and self-certification forms had been completed by the 
line manager and the employee.

P
age 29



Page 26

Audit 
Assignment

Assurance Rating

Design             Compliance     Org Impact

Area Reviewed Basis for Assurance Opinion

Testing of a sample of flexi time sheets confirmed that 
in all cases selected 100% of sickness absences had 
been recorded on the absence management system. 
The Annual Leave Policy and Procedure as well as 
Flexible Working Hours Scheme are available to all staff.  
In sample testing, in 87% of cases the annual leave 
cards were completed for the period of the absence 
and approved by the relevant Manager. In the majority 
of cases the flexi time sheets were completed 
accurately and in line with the procedures whilst some 
had minor administrative errors. 

At the time of audit, the latest Q4 figures were reported 
to Corporate Committee in July 2018 and stated 1.4 
days lost per full time employee.  However, it was 
noted that quarterly performance was being reported 
against the annual target of 5 days, making this appear 
as good performance when, in fact, as a quarterly figure 
this is poor performance against target.

Delivery of Corporate Objectives
Beckmill Court 
regeneration 
project

Satisfactory 
assurance

Limited 
assurance

Moderate To provide assurance over the project 
management arrangements for this 
capital project.

The Beckmill Court regeneration project is a major 
capital scheme that supports the Council’s corporate 
objective of helping to provide homes and 
environments that meet local needs. In 2012 the 
buildings were given a negative value and consultants 
were engaged to undertake a condition survey. In 2013 
a feasibility study was undertaken to consider options 
for the building. In 2014 a further feasibility study and 

P
age 30



Page 27

Audit 
Assignment

Assurance Rating

Design             Compliance     Org Impact

Area Reviewed Basis for Assurance Opinion

cost estimation exercise was undertaken for the 
preferred option. In 2015 a development study was 
undertaken and a budget estimate of £3.1m advised by 
consultants. In 2016 design work and preparations for 
tender were carried out. In 2017 a contract was 
awarded to Fortem for £2.02m and works commenced 
in October 2017 with a planned completion date of 
June 2018.

Overall arrangements for management and control of 
the project were not fully compliant with the Council’s 
established project management framework. 
Documentation is lacking in several areas making it 
difficult to demonstrate that the project has been 
robustly managed at all stages and that value for money 
has been achieved, particularly in respect of the 
appointment of consultants. The project has been 
delivered over an extended period of time compared to 
the original timescales established at the feasibility 
stage. There have been several changes of staff in key 
project roles during this time and it has not always been 
possible to establish whether the absence of 
documentation is due to a failure of process or a failure 
of record keeping. 

Officers are satisfied that the key outcomes of the 
project (to complete essential repairs and regeneration 
works to improve residents quality of life) will be 
delivered as planned although there have been 

P
age 31



Page 28

Audit 
Assignment

Assurance Rating

Design             Compliance     Org Impact

Area Reviewed Basis for Assurance Opinion

significant delays and latest estimates indicate that the 
project will be overspent by approximately £116k.

Housing 
repairs 
contract

Good 
assurance

Satisfactory 
assurance

Moderate To provide assurance over the 
management of the new housing repairs 
contract, to ensure the value for money is 
maximised; quality is effectively managed; 
and risks of fraud/overpayment are 
robustly controlled.

The housing repairs service directly supports a number 
of the Council’s key priorities, including increasing the 
availability of good quality homes and delivering quality 
services to local residents. The Council has 
approximately 1,800 homes and spends over £1 million 
per year on planned and responsive repairs and 
maintenance. The Council recently awarded a new 
housing repairs contract on a Price per Property (PPP) 
and Price per Void (PPV) basis to Axis Europe Plc, 
commencing on 1st October 2018 for a duration of five 
years with the option to extend the contract for up to 
five further years. A full audit of the new contract will 
be considered for inclusion in the 2019/20 internal 
audit plan after the contract has been operational for a 
reasonable period of time. In the meantime, 
management has requested a review of the 
arrangements for raising and managing repair orders 
and ensuring a good quality of service is provided to 
tenants. The audit has focused primarily on responsive 
repairs.

A sound control framework has been specified for 
managing the contract and ensuring timely completion 
of good quality repairs. This includes good proposed 
tenant communication arrangements. However, at the 
time of commencement of this audit the new contract 
had only been operational for a few weeks and some 

P
age 32



Page 29

Audit 
Assignment

Assurance Rating

Design             Compliance     Org Impact

Area Reviewed Basis for Assurance Opinion

arrangements had not been fully implemented. For 
example, work is ongoing to complete the IT interfaces 
necessary to support direct access to the contractor’s 
appointment scheduling system. Furthermore, 
performance monitoring and reporting regimes and 
post-repair inspection arrangements have not yet been 
fully implemented.  As such, it was too early at the time 
of audit to draw any firm conclusions about compliance 
with controls or the overall efficiency and effectiveness 
of the Council’s arrangements. This issue will be 
revisited as part of next year’s audit, in the meantime it 
is recommended that officers prepare a prioritised 
action plan or issues log to ensure that all outstanding 
matters associated with the new contract are captured 
and resolved in a manged and timely manner.

Environmental 
Health

Satisfactory 
assurance 

Satisfactory 
assurance

Minor To provide assurance over the effective 
prioritisation of service delivery, efficient 
processes and delivery of expected service 
levels.

Environmental health services directly support a 
number of the Council’s corporate priorities, including 
achieving a clean and attractive local environment and 
delivering quality services to businesses and residents. 
It also contributes to key corporate projects like 
Shaping the Future for Melton. Environmental health 
covers a wide range of functions, including the 
promotion of food hygiene and safety, improvement of 
housing conditions, dog control, contaminated land, 
occupational health and safety together with a number 
of licensing and environmental protection/pollution 
activities. 

P
age 33



Page 30

Audit 
Assignment

Assurance Rating

Design             Compliance     Org Impact

Area Reviewed Basis for Assurance Opinion

There is a good mix of skills and experience within the 
Environmental Health team and all members of staff 
have a clear understanding of service objectives and 
priorities. However, limited resources and increasing 
number of complaints and service requests means that 
a disproportionate amount of time is spent on lower 
priority reactive work at the expense of planned 
inspections. Strengthening demand management and 
setting realistic, risk based service standards for 
reactive work would help to address this issue. The 
development of more formal arrangements for 
monitoring staff and team productivity would improve 
operational oversight and support future management 
decisions on resource allocation.

Performance management and reporting is generally 
sound but would benefit from the development of 
more performance indicators and targets to provide a 
comprehensive picture of activity and outcomes. 
Moreover, the retention of supporting evidence would 
improve the audit trail and provide assurance over the 
accuracy of reported performance levels.

Internal Audit is aware that a separate planning service 
review has recently been completed. When considering 
this report, management should consider possible 
synergies between these reviews as both relate to the 
same service department.

P
age 34



Page 31

Audit 
Assignment

Assurance Rating

Design             Compliance     Org Impact

Area Reviewed Basis for Assurance Opinion

Safeguarding Satisfactory 
assurance

Satisfactory 
assurance

Minor The purpose of this audit was to provide 
assurance that the Council has adequate 
controls in place to fulfil its 
responsibilities in relation to 
safeguarding.

The Council works with Leicestershire County Council, 
primarily, as well as other agencies, to ensure 
safeguarding is embedded within all services 
throughout the organisation. Appropriate information 
sharing arrangements are in place and the safeguarding 
referrals are handled in accordance with the Council's 
procedures and  progressed  to the relevant agencies 
where applicable. However, the audit identified 
opportunities to further enhance the control 
framework. The safeguarding policies were found to be 
out of date, however it must be noted that currently 
single policy which covers the Council’s arrangements 
for safeguarding both children and vulnerable adults is 
being prepared. 

The Council has appointed designated safeguarding 
officers in each service area who are responsible for 
managing and co-coordinating the Council’s 
safeguarding activities. The published safeguarding 
policies at the time of the audit included an out of date 
list of the Council’s designated safeguarding officers. 
Also 38% of those participating in an audit survey stated 
that they did not know who the designated 
safeguarding officers at MBC were. The list of current 
designated officers and contact information has now 
been reviewed and updated and will form part of a new 
revised policy. Officers need to ensure that up to date 
details of safeguarding leads are readily available to all.

P
age 35



Page 32

Audit 
Assignment

Assurance Rating

Design             Compliance     Org Impact

Area Reviewed Basis for Assurance Opinion

Melton Borough Council also has a duty to ensure that 
all elected Members comply with the Council’s 
Safeguarding Policy and consider the welfare of all 
children, young people and vulnerable adults whilst 
undertaking all services and functions. The audit 
identified opportunities to enhance governance 
arrangements in terms of appointing a portfolio holder 
to lead and oversee the Council’s safeguarding 
arrangements and also a need to address knowledge 
gaps by rolling out the safeguarding training to 
Members. 

It is unlawful for an organisation to complete criminal 
record checks if the post does not meet the criteria 
outlined in the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act (ROA) 
1974 (Exceptions) Order 1975. In terms of appropriate 
person checks of MBC staff the records of job roles 
subject to a DBS check is in place, however as audit 
testing identified, it needs to be reviewed and updated. 
Audit review of all staff and new starters identified four 
roles that were not recorded on the establishment list 
as requiring DBS but where DBS checks were actually 
conducted - indicating a need to update the lists of 
posts. Audit review also established that right to work 
checks are being completed and ID checks are 
undertaken prior to new the employment start date.

Audit review of a sample of roles requiring 
DBS identified the need to improve audit trail in regards 

P
age 36



Page 33

Audit 
Assignment

Assurance Rating

Design             Compliance     Org Impact

Area Reviewed Basis for Assurance Opinion

to DBS renewals to ensure these are undertaken timely 
and that the frequency of the rechecks are appropriate 
to the role. Also the Recruitment of Ex-offenders policy 
requires a review and introduction of a new risk 
assessment template for recording of risks when 
convictions are disclosed or when DBS is not received 
prior to the employee start date. 

P
age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank



INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER AND STRATEGY

1.0 Summary:
1.1 To provide Members with a copy of the Internal Audit Charter and Strategy for 

annual review and approval.

2.0 Recommendations
2.1 That Members review and approve the Internal Audit Charter and Strategy.

3.0 Report Detail
3.1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards define the internal audit charter as ‘a 

formal document that defines the internal audit activity’s purpose, authority and 
responsibility. The internal audit charter establishes the internal audit activity’s 
position within the organisation, including the nature of the chief audit executive’s 
functional reporting relationship with the board; authorises access to records, 
personnel and physical properties relevant to the performance of engagements; 
and defines the scope of internal audit activities’.

3.2 Since 1st April 2017, the Council’s Internal Audit service has been formally 
delegated to LGSS. As such, at that point the Head of Internal Audit reviewed the 
Internal Audit Charter and Strategy, and updated this to reflect best practice and 
the standard approach adopted across the LGSS client base. This was formally 
approved by the Committee in June 2017 and has since been subject to annual 
review, in line with best practice.

3.3 No material amendments to the Charter are proposed for 2019/20. The only 
amendments are as follows:

 To amend any references to Strategic Management Team (SMT) to Senior 
Leadership Team (SLT), to reflect the latest management structure; and

 To amend any references to the Governance Committee exercising the role of 
the ‘Board’ or ‘Audit Committee’ to the Audit and Standards Committee, in line 
with the revised committee structure and terms of reference.

4.0 Consultation and Feedback (including Scrutiny Committee)
4.1 Not applicable.

Audit & Standards 
Committee 
11th June 2019
Report of: Head of Internal Audit

Page 39

Agenda Item 5



5.0 Next Steps
5.1 If approved, the Internal Audit plan for 2019/20 will be delivered in accordance with 

the Charter and Strategy.

6.0 Financial Implications
6.1 There are no financial or other resource implications arising directly from this report.

7.0 Legal and Governance Implications:
7.1 There are no legal implications arising directly from this report.

8.0 Equality and Safeguarding Implications:
8.1 There are no equalities or safeguarding implications arising directly from this report.

9.0 Community Safety Implications:
9.1 There are no community safety implications arising directly from this report.

10.0 Other Implications
10.1 There are no other implications arising directly from this report.

11.0 Risk & Mitigation:
11.1 In delivering its services, an effective Internal Audit team should help the 

organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined 
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control 
and governance processes.

Background Papers:
Not applicable.

Appendices
Appendix 1:  Internal Audit Charter and Strategy

Report Timeline:

Equalities Check & Challenge 
SLT Sign off
Previously Considered by Cabinet 
Director Approval
Chief Finance Officer Sign Off
Monitoring Officer Sign Off

Page 40



Exempt Reports

Date of Review to make public (Exempt Reports only)

Report Author & Job Title
Rachel Ashley-Caunt, LGSS Head of Internal Audit & Counter Fraud

: 07824 537900  

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER AND STRATEGY

1. INTRODUCTION & CONTEXT

1.1. Melton Borough Council’s Internal Audit service is delivered by LGSS.

1.2. As austerity continues, the context for local government and for the overall governance, risk 
and control environment within which it operates is increasingly challenging. Efficiency and 
transformation programmes are fundamentally altering the nature and structure of the 
Council. Services have become increasingly sophisticated in their understanding of risk 
management and may accept greater levels of controlled risk in order to achieve their aims. 
This is accompanied by greater transparency and scrutiny of public expenditure and 
governance.  This context will affect the overall governance, risk and control environment.

1.3. Internal Audit is required to maintain an Internal Audit Strategy and Charter. The core 
governance context for Internal Audit is summarised below:

The Accounts and Audit Regulations (2015) set out that:

A relevant authority must ensure that it has a sound system of internal control which—
facilitates the effective exercise of its functions and the achievement of its aims and objectives;
ensures that the financial and operational management of the authority is effective; and
includes effective arrangements for the management of risk.

And that:

A relevant authority must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of 
its risk management, control and governance processes, taking into account public sector 
internal auditing standards or guidance.

A relevant authority must, each financial year—

conduct a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control required by regulation 3; 
and prepare an annual governance statement

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) issued in April 2013 include the need for risk-
based plans to be developed for internal audit and to receive input from management and the 
‘Board’ (usually discharged by the Council’s Audit and Standards Committee).  The work of 
Internal Audit therefore derives directly from these responsibilities, including:

PSIAS: 2010 - “The Chief Audit Executive must establish risk-based plans to determine the 
priorities of the internal audit activity, consistent with the organisation’s goals.”

PSIAS : 2450 – “The Chief Audit Executive must deliver an annual internal audit opinion and 
report that can be used by the organisation to inform its governance statement.  The annual 
internal audit opinion must conclude on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
organisation’s framework of governance, risk management and control.

Page 43



1.4. The purpose of the audit strategy and charter is to put in place an approach that will enable 
Internal Audit to deliver a modern and effective service that:

 Meets the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations;

 Ensures effective audit coverage and a mechanism to provide independent and 
objective overall assurance in particular to Councillors and management;

 Provides an independent Annual Opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Council’s framework of governance, risk management and control environment;

 Identifies the highest risk areas of the Council and allocates available internal audit 
resources accordingly;

 Adds value and supports senior management in providing effective control and 
identifying opportunities for improving value for money; and

 Supports the S151 officer in maintaining prudent financial stewardship for the 
Council.

1.5. The following definitions apply throughout the Strategy and Charter:

 The Audit and Standards Committee – acts as the PSIAS defined Council ‘Board’.
 The LGSS Chief Internal Auditor – is the PSIAS defined ‘Chief Audit Executive’.  In 

practice, a number of the key roles and responsibilities will be delegated to the 
LGSS Head of Internal Audit, unless otherwise stated.

 Melton Borough Council’s Senior Leadership Team (SLT) – is the PSIAS defined 
‘senior management’ team.

 Internal Audit – is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity 
designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an 
organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined 
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control 
and governance processes.

 Assurance Services – an objective examination of evidence for the purpose of 
providing an independent assessment on governance, risk management and control 
processes for the Council - including financial, performance, compliance, system 
security and due diligence.

 Consulting Services – Advisory and related client service activities, the nature and 
scope of which are agreed with the client, are intended to add value and improve 
an organisation’s governance, risk management and control processes without the 
internal auditor assuming management responsibility - examples include counsel, 
advice, facilitation and training.

2. STRATEGY & VISION

2.1. Internal Audit will provide the public, Councillors and Council officers with confidence that 
Council operations are properly governed and controlled, risks are effectively managed and 
service delivery meets customer need. Where confidence is not possible the service will 
ensure that the implications and risks are understood to ensure proportionate action is taken. 
Internal Audit will be responsive to the Council’s needs and the risks to which the Council is 
exposed. The ‘Mission’ for Internal Audit is therefore:

Page 44



‘To enhance and protect organisational value by providing risk-based and objective assurance, 
advice and insight’.

2.2. Internal Audit is not responsible for the control systems it audits. Responsibility for effective 
internal control rests with the management / executive of the Council. Directors and Heads of 
Service are responsible for ensuring that internal control arrangements are sufficient to 
address the risks facing their services and achieve approved objectives / policy.

2.3. LGSS Internal Audit will provide a robust high quality audit service that delivers honest, 
evidenced assurance, by:

 Focusing on what is important
Deploying its resources where there is most value aligned to the corporate 
objectives and priorities, the processes to facilitate these and the key risks to their 
achievement, whilst ensuring sufficient assurance to support the Annual 
Governance Statement.

 Being flexible and responsive to the needs of the Council
The Annual Plan will be reviewed quarterly enabling Audit resources to be 
redeployed as new risks emerge, with the agreement of senior management and 
the board.

 Being outward looking and forward focused
The service will be aware of national and local developments and of their potential 
impact on the Council’s governance, risk management and control arrangements.

 Providing Assurance
There is value in providing assurance to senior managers and members that the 
arrangements they put in place are working effectively, and in helping managers to 
improve the systems and processes for which they are responsible.

 Balancing independent support and challenge
Avoiding a tone which blames, but being resolute in challenging for the wider 
benefit of the Council and residents.

 Having impact
Delivering work which has buy-in and which leads to sustained change.

 Enjoying a positive relationship with and being welcomed by the ‘top table’
Identifying and sharing organisational issues and themes that are recognised and 
taken on board. Working constructively with management to support new 
developments.

 Strengthening the governance of the Council
Being ambassadors for and encouraging the Council towards best practice in order 
to maximise the chances of achieving its objectives, including the provision of 
consultancy and advice.

2.4.  The Internal Audit Service maintains an ongoing and comprehensive understanding of:

Page 45



 Local Government / Public Sector
 The Council and its community
 Professional Audit and Corporate Governance standards

2.5. All staff within the audit service hold a relevant professional qualification, part qualification or 
are actively studying towards a relevant qualification. All participate in continuing professional 
development, both in relation to specific audit skills e.g. contract audit, and softer skills e.g. 
communication skills.

3. AUTHORITY

3.1. In accordance with PSIAS, the Chief Internal Auditor has full responsibility for the operation 
and delivery of the Internal Audit function including the production and execution of the audit 
plan and subsequent audit activities. The annual audit plan will be agreed in consultation with 
relevant officers, the Audit and Standards Committee, and the Senior Leadership Team.

3.2. Internal Audit's authority is documented and defined within the Council’s Constitution and 
Financial Regulations. Internal Audit’s remit extends across the entire control environment of 
the Council.

3.3. Internal Audit has unrestricted access to all Council and partner records and information 
(whether manual or computerised systems), officers, cash, stores and other property, it 
considers necessary to fulfil its responsibilities. Internal Audit may enter Council property and 
has unrestricted access to all locations and officers without prior notice if necessary.

3.4. All Council contracts and partnerships shall contain similar provision for Internal Audit to 
access records pertaining to the Councils business held by contractors or partners.

3.5. All employees are required to assist the internal audit activity in fulfilling its roles and 
responsibilities.

3.6. The Audit Committee (as the Board) shall be informed of any restriction unduly placed on the 
scope of Internal Audit’s activities which in the opinion of the Chief Internal Auditor prevent 
the proper discharge of IA functions.

3.7. The Chief Internal Auditor and individual audit staff are responsible and accountable for 
maintaining the confidentially of the information they receive during the course of their work.

3.8. To provide for independence the day to day management of the Internal Audit Service is 
undertaken by the Chief Internal Auditor/Head of Internal Audit who report to the Audit 
Committee. This accords with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards which requires the 
Chief Internal Auditor to report to the very top of the organisation.

3.9. The Chief Internal Auditor has direct and unrestricted access to the Council’s Chief Executive, 
Section 151 Officer, Directors, External Audit and Audit and Standards Committees at his/her 
discretion, including private meetings with the Chair of the Audit and Standards Committee.

4. INDEPENDENCE & OBJECTIVITY

4.1. Independence is essential to the effectiveness of the internal audit service; so it will remain 
free from interference in all regards. This shall include, but not be limited to, matters of audit 
selection, scope, procedure, frequency, timing or report content.

Page 46



4.2. Internal auditors will exhibit the highest level of professional objectivity in gathering, 
evaluating, and communicating information about the activity or process being examined. 
They will make a balanced assessment of all the relevant circumstances and not be unduly 
influenced by their own interests or by others in forming judgments.

4.3. In addition to the ethical requirements of the various professional bodies, each auditor is 
required to sign an annual declaration of interest to ensure that the allocation of audit work 
avoids conflict of interest and declare any potential ‘conflict of interest’ on allocation of an 
audit. Any potential impairments to independence or objectivity will be declared prior to 
accepting any work.

4.4. Internal auditors will have no direct operational responsibility or authority over any of the 
activities audited. Accordingly, they will not implement internal controls, ‘approve’ 
procedures, install systems, prepare records, or engage in any other activity that may impair 
the internal auditor’s judgment. Where auditors have previously been involved in any of these 
activities or consultancy work they will be prohibited from auditing those areas for at least 2 
years. Where appropriate, audits are rotated within the team to avoid over-familiarity and 
complacency.

4.5. The Chief Internal Auditor will confirm to the Audit Committee, at least annually, the 
organisational independence of the internal audit service.

5. HOW THE SERVICE WILL BE DELIVERED

5.1. Audit Planning - The audit plan guides the work of the service during the year. The planning 
principles are:

 Focusing assurance effort on the most important issues, the key obligations, 
outcomes and objectives, critical business processes and projects, and principal 
risks; pitching coverage therefore at both strategic and key operational aspects;

 Maintaining up to date awareness of the impact of the external and internal 
environment on control arrangements;

 Using a risk assessment methodology to determine priorities for audit coverage 
based as far as possible on management’s view of risk in conjunction with other 
intelligence sources e.g. corporate risk register, audit risk scores;

 Taking account of dialogue and consultation with key stakeholders to ensure an 
appropriate balance of assurance needs, but recognising in a resource constrained 
environment there will be situations when not all needs can be met which is where 
risk management is key;

 Being flexible so that the plan evolves through the year in response to emerging 
risks and issues;

 Providing for the delivery of key commitments, such as work done in support of the 
External Auditor thus reducing the external audit fee, and to deliver governance 
and antifraud responsibilities; and

 Including provision for responding to requests for assistance with special 
investigations, consultancy and other forms of advice from management and 
sources.

Page 47



5.2. Annex A illustrates the Planning cycle and the processes through which individual assignments 
are undertaken, reports issued and opinions given.

5.3. The number of available audit days to the Internal Audit Service will be reviewed to be 
sufficient to enable the audit service to deliver the risk based plan in accordance with 
professional standards. This takes into account the fact that additional resource will be 
procured as and when necessary e.g. for technical IT audits, when significant resource is 
diverted through unplanned work. The focus on the high risk areas will reduce the overall 
coverage required.

5.4. In order to deliver the Annual Audit Plan at the required quality and professionalism we strive 
to ensure that the team has the required mix of skills and experience. The use of external 
experts e.g. IT auditors compared to employing or developing these expensive resources in 
house is constantly under review to ensure that the service delivers a high quality product at 
best value for money.  Future recruitment will take into account the expertise and skills 
required to fill any gaps within the current service.

5.5. The breadth of coverage within the plan necessitates a wide range of high quality audit skills. 
The types of audit work undertaken include:

 Risk based system audit
 Compliance audit
 IT audit
 Procurement and contract management audit
 Project and programme audits
 Risk Management
 Fraud/investigation work
 Value for money audit
 Control self-assessment techniques
 Consultancy and advice

5.6. Internal Audit may procure external audit resource to enhance the service provision as 
necessary.

5.7. Internal Audit Annual Opinion - Each year the Chief Internal Auditor will provide a publicly 
reported opinion on the effectiveness of governance, risk and control, which also informs the 
Annual Governance Statement.  This will be supported by reliable and relevant evidence 
gathered though all work undertaken by Internal Audit during the year.

5.8. Conduct of work  - The principles of how we conduct our work are:
 Focusing on what is important to the Council and in the ultimate interests of the 

public;
 Striving continuously to foster buy-in and engagement with the audit process;
 Ensuring findings and facts reported are accurate and informed by a wide evidence 

base, including requesting information from ex-employees and other stakeholders 
where appropriate;

 Ensuring that risks identified in planning are followed through into audit work;
 Ensuring that the right skills and right approaches are in place for individual 

assignments;
 Suggesting actions that are pragmatic and proportionate to risk, tailored for the 

best result and take into account the culture, constraints and the cost of controls;

Page 48



 Focusing as a rule on ensuring compliance with existing processes and systems and 
reducing bureaucracy rather than introducing new layers of control;

 Being resolute in challenging; taking account of views, escalating issues and holding 
our position when appropriate;

 Driving the audit process by agreeing deadlines, meeting these on our part, and 
escalating non-response promptly in order to complete our work; and

 Having high standards of behaviour at all times.

5.9. Reporting - The reports produced by the service are its key output. The reporting principles 
are:

 Providing balanced evidence-based reports which recognise both good practice and 
areas of weakness

 Reporting in a timely, brief, clear and professional manner
 Ensuring that reports clearly set out assurance opinions on the objectives/risks 

identified in planning work
 Always seeking management’s response to reports so that the final report includes 

a commitment to action
 Sharing reports with senior management and members, identifying key themes and 

potential future risks so that our work has impact at the highest levels
 Sharing learning with the wider organisation with a view to encouraging best 

practice across the Council.

5.10. A written report will be prepared and issued following the conclusion of each internal audit 
engagement, including follow up audits; unless in the opinion of the Head of Internal Audit 
and Client lead a written report is unnecessary.  Each report will:

 Provide an evidenced opinion on the adequacy of the governance, risk and control 
processes;

 identify inadequately addressed risks and non-effective control processes;
 detail agreed actions including explanation for any corrective action that will not be 

implemented;
 provide management’s response and timescale for corrective action
 provide management’s explanations for any risks that will not be addressed
 Identify individuals responsible for implementing agreed actions

5.11. Senior Management shall ensure that agreed corrective actions are introduced.

5.12. All audits and follow ups receiving a weak or limited audit opinion will be highlighted to the 
Senior Leadership Team, and the Audit and Standards Committee. Regular reports to the Audit 
and Standards Committee shall highlight each weak / limited report until controls have been 
restored to satisfactory levels at least.

5.13. To assist the manager/reader in easily identifying the areas that are well managed and the 
significance of areas of concern, actions, objectives and overall assurance opinions are 
categorised using three key elements as summarised below (and set out in detail at Annex B):

Assess and test the CONTROL ENVIRONMENT,
Test COMPLIANCE with those control systems, and
Assess the ORGANISATIONAL IMPACT of the area being audited.

5.14. Actions / Recommendations - Actions are categorised dependent on the risk as follows:

Page 49



Importance   What this means

High
Action is imperative to ensure that the  objectives for the 
area under review are met

Medium
Requires actions to avoid exposure to significant risks in 
achieving objectives for the area

Low
Action recommended to enhance control or improve 
operational efficiency

5.15. Follow ups -All High and Medium actions are followed up in accordance with the agreed action 
implementation dates.  Further follow ups are undertaken as required.  The Internal Audit 
Service will review their role in this area with the aim of promoting the action owner to 
proactively inform Internal Audit and provide evidence when an action has been fully 
implemented to inform the follow up process. Such an approach emphasises the need for 
managers to deliver required improvements without prompting, reinforcing their 
accountabilities

5.16. Quality Assurance – The Internal Audit function is bound by the following standards:

 Institute of Internal Auditor’s International Code of Ethics;
 Seven Principles of Public Life (Nolan Principles);
 UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards;
 All Council Policies and Procedures;
 Professional standards and Code of Ethics required by auditor’s respective 

professional bodies;
 Internal Audit Strategy, Charter and Audit Manual; and
 All relevant legislation.

5.17. The Chief Internal Auditor maintains an appropriate Quality Assurance Framework and reports 
on this annually. The framework includes:

 An audit manual documenting methods of working;
 Supervision and review arrangements;
 Customer feedback arrangements;
 Quality Standards;
 Annual Internal review;
 Periodic external reviews;
 Performance measures, including:
o Proportion of Plan completed, including spread of areas covered
o Proportion of agreed actions implemented
o Proportion of Weak / Limited Assurance opinion reports that improve to at least 

satisfactory as at follow up
o Productive/direct time as a % of total time
o Customer satisfaction levels

Page 50



5.18. The completion of every assignment shall be monitored against:
 end to end time
 days taken to complete
 time between key audit stages e.g. draft issue to final report issue
 customer satisfaction

5.19. The Audit and Standards Committee, Senior Leadership Team and the Section 151 Officer 
receive regular updates on audits completed, the assurance opinions and actions 
implemented. Weak and limited opinion reports and key actions not implemented are 
discussed in more detail as appropriate with SLT, the Section 151 Officer and / or the Audit 
and Standards Committee.

5.20. Internal Audit is subject to a Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme that covers all 
aspects of internal audit activity. This consists of:

 ongoing performance monitoring;
 an annual self-assessment of the service and its compliance with the UK Public 

Sector Internal Audit Standards;
 an external assessment at least once every five years by a suitably qualified, 

independent assessor;
 a programme of Continuous Professional Development (CPD) for all staff working 

on audit engagements to ensure that auditors maintain and enhance their 
knowledge, skills and audit competencies;

 the Chief Internal Auditor holding a professional qualification (current Chief Internal 
Auditor is a member of CIMA) and being suitably experienced; and

 encouraging, and where appropriate acting on, Customer feedback.

6. COUNTER-FRAUD and ASSOCIATED ISSUES

6.1. The Chief Internal Auditor will ensure that all work is undertaken and all staff are conversant 
with the Council’s Anti-Fraud policies and culture, including:

 Counter Fraud and Corruption policy
 Whistleblowing policy
 Anti-Money Laundering Policy

6.2. All Internal Audit staff will be alert to possibility of fraud during all work but are not 
responsible for identifying fraud.

Page 51



Annual Audit 
Plan

• December/January - Develop AAP
• January/February - Consult Audit and Standards Committee, SLT
• February - Draft AAP for SLT review and agreement
• March - AAP reviewed and approved by Audit and Standards Committee
• Subject to quarterly review with SLT 
• Any significant amendments subject to formal approval

Individual 
Audits

• Meeting with service area to agree ToR
• ToR sent to Head of Service for sign off
• Audit undertaken - feedback given throughout audit
• Findings summarised and clearance meeting held
• Draft report issued to manager/Head of Service for agreement 
and action plan (and SLT if required in ToR)

• Final draft report issued to Head of Service and Director for sign 
off

• Final report issued to officers, s151 officer, Director, Chief 
Executive, Monitoring Officer, Deputy Chief Executive

• Summarised at next Audit and Standards Committee meeting

Throughout 
financial 

year

• All reports available to 
committee on request

• Follow ups on agreed 
actions

Annex A

AUDIT PLANNING & DELIVERY PROCESSES

Page 52



Annex B

INTERNAL CONTROL ASSESSMENT

Control Environment Assurance

Level Definitions

Substantial There are minimal control weaknesses that present very low risk to the 
control environment

Good There are minor control weaknesses that present low risk to the control 
environment

Satisfactory There are some control weaknesses that present a medium risk to the 
control environment

Limited There are significant control weaknesses that present a high risk to the 
control environment.

No Assurance There are fundamental control weaknesses that present an unacceptable 
level of risk to the control environment

Compliance Assurance

Level Definitions

Substantial The control environment has substantially operated as intended although 
some minor errors have been detected.

Good The control environment has largely operated as intended although some 
errors have been detected

Satisfactory The control environment has mainly operated as intended although 
errors have been detected.

Limited The control environment has not operated as intended. Significant errors 
have been detected.

No Assurance The control environment has fundamentally broken down and is open to 
significant error or abuse.

Organisational Impact

Level Definitions

Major The weaknesses identified during the review have left the Council open 
to significant risk. If the risk materialises it would have a major impact 
upon the organisation as a whole.

Moderate The weaknesses identified during the review have left the Council open 
to medium risk. If the risk materialises it would have a moderate impact 
upon the organisation as a whole.

Minor The weaknesses identified during the review have left the Council open 
to low risk. This could have a minor impact on the organisation as a 
whole.

Page 53



Where specific compliance reviews are undertaken e.g. grant certification, the following 
definitions are used to assess the level of compliance in each individual reviewed, albeit 
each certification usually requires the Chief Internal Auditor and Managing Director to 
formally certify compliance with grant conditions.

Individual audits are reported to relevant Head of Service and the Chair and Vice Chair of 
the Audit and Standards Committee.  Periodic summary reports are issued to the Audit and 
Standards Committee.

An Annual Audit Opinion is then constructed based upon the years’ work and formally 
reported to the Senior Leadership Team, the Audit and Standards Committee and relevant 
stakeholders to inform the Annual Governance Statement and Accounts.

Opinion for Compliance Audits – Levels of Compliance

Level Definitions

High There was significant compliance with agreed policy and/or procedure 
with only minor errors identified.

Medium There was general compliance with the agreed policy and/or procedure. 
Although errors have been identified there are not considered to be 
material.

Low There was limited compliance with agreed policy and/or procedure. The 
errors identified are placing system objectives at risk.

Page 54



CODE OF CONDUCT UPDATE

1.0 Summary:
1.1 To update the Committee on the latest position with regard to standards matters 

including the Code of Conduct, the Registration of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
(DPIs) and Other Interests and any complaints against Councillors dealt with 
under the Council’s process.

2.0 Recommendations
2.1 The update on the position of standards matters including Parishes’ 

Registration of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and Other Interests and 
complaints against Councillors dealt with under the provisions of the 
Localism Act be noted.

3.0 Report Detail
3.1 Registration of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and Other Interests 

Following the Borough and Parish elections on 2 May 2019, both Borough and 
Parish Councillors are required to complete a new Registration of Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests (DPI) form within 28 days of their election. This is a legal 
requirement and to not disclose this information is a criminal offence.

3.2 Complaints 

At the time of writing the report, there are three complaints in progress.

4.0 Consultation and Feedback 
4.1 There is consultation with the Independent Person on Councillor complaints and 

Parish Representatives are also consulted on Parish Councillor complaints in line 
with the legislation.

5.0 Next Steps
5.1 To publish a full register of Borough and Parish Councillors’ disclosable pecuniary 

interests to the website.

Council / Committee – 
meeting name 
Date 
Report of: Director for Law and 

Governance

Page 55

Agenda Item 6



6.0 Financial Implications
6.1 Any financial implications are able to be met from existing resources.  However 

following the Borough and Parish elections the registering of Members’ interests 
and publishing these to the website has a significant impact on the Council’s 
Democratic Services resources.

7.0 Legal and Governance Implications:
7.1 The Localism Act includes that the non-registration of a disclosable pecuniary 

interest within 28 days is a criminal offence.

8.0 Equality and Safeguarding Implications:
8.1 An Equalities Screening Assessment has been completed and outlines the 

Council’s responsibilities with regard to matters within the report under the 
Localism Act.

9.0 Community Safety Implications:
9.1 There are no specific community safety implications in this report. 

10.0 Other Implications
10.1 Not applicable.

11.0 Risk & Mitigation:
11.1 The risks associated with the report are low and marginal and are considered to 

relate to managing the requirements of the Localism Act.  The implications of this 
not being followed by Councillors would impact on the Council’s decision-making 
process and reputation and should disclosable interests not be made known to 
the Monitoring Officer, these could have an impact on decisions being challenged 
due to processes not followed in line with legislation and the Council’s agreed 
process.  To mitigate information not being made available and deadlines not 
being met, regular reminders are sent to both Borough and Parish Councillors to 
ensure their DPIs are registered and up to date.

Background Papers:
All documents listed are previously published :-
Localism Act 2011
Minutes of Council Meeting held on 18 July 2012
Minutes of Council Meeting held on 17 July 2013
Minutes of Council Meeting held on 11 December 2013
Previous Minutes of Governance Committee.

Appendices
None

Page 56



Report Timeline:

Equalities Check & Challenge Not applicable
SLT Sign off Not applicable
Previously Considered by Cabinet Not applicable
Director Approval 3 June 2019
Chief Finance Officer Sign Off 3 June 2019
Monitoring Officer Sign Off 3 June 2019

Exempt Reports
Not applicable

Date of Review to make public (Exempt Reports only)
Not applicable

Report Author & Job Title
Adele Wylie, Director for Law and Governance

: 01664 502502  

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Internal Audit Annual Report 2018/19
	Appendix A

	5 Internal Audit Charter and Strategy
	Appendix 1

	6 Code of Conduct Update

